SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 11, 2014
9:07 a.m

9:07:14 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Any Saltzman, Staff, Senator Lesil MQiire; Patty Onen,
Education Specialist, Departnment of Education and Early
Devel opnent; Lauree Morton, Executive Director, Council on
Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault, Departnment of Public
Saf ety; Representative Tanmie WIson; Senat or Pet er
M cci che.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

George Pierce, Self, Kasilof; Rowena Palonmar, Executive
Director, Advocates for Victinms of Violence, Valdez; Doug
Vincent-Lang, Director of WIldlife, Departnent of Fish and
Ganme, Anchorage; Gant L. Lewis, President, Tanana Valley
Sportsman's Associ ation, Fairbanks.

SUMVARY

SB 216 SEXUAL ABUSE/ ASSAULT PREVENTI ON PROGRAMS



CSSB 216(FIN) was REPORTED out of conmittee with
a "do pass" recommendation and wth previously
publ i shed fiscal inpact note: FN1 ( EED)

SB 209 REGULATI ON OF SMOKI NG

SB 209 was HEARD and HELD in committee for
further consideration.

CSHB 268( FI N)
Bl G BULL MOOSE DERBI ES; SNOW TOWN | CE CL.

CSHB 268(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

#sb216
SENATE BILL NO. 216

"An Act relating to sexual abuse and sexual assault
awareness and prevention efforts in public schools;
establishing a task force in the Council on Donestic
Vi ol ence and Sexual Assault; and providing for an
effective date.”

9:08: 28 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough MOVED to ADOPT the commttee
substitute for CSSB 216(FIN), Wrk Draft 28-LS1617\R
(M schel, 4/10/14). There being NO OBJECTION, it was so
or der ed.

AMY SALTZMAN, STAFF, SENATOR LESIL MCGU RE, announced that
the only change in the CS was on page 1, lines 10 and 11,
and added in consultation with the Council on Donestic
Vi ol ence and Sexual Assault. The new section would read,
"The governing body of each school district, shall, in
consultation with the Council on Donestic Violence and
Sexual Assault adopt and inplenent a policy; establish a
mandatory training program for enployees and students
enrolled in kindergarten and provide publications related
to sexual assault and sexual assault awareness and
prevention to parents, students, and staff. She stated that
the additions followed through to all the requirenments
listed in subsection B

PATTY OWEN, EDUCATI ON SPECI ALI ST, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON
AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT, introduced herself.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 04/ 11/14 9:07 A M



LAUREE MORTON, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, COUNCIL ON DOVESTIC
VI OLENCE AND SEXUAL ASSAULT, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY,
i nt roduced hersel f.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough stated that there were nore than 120
school districts in Al aska and over 120 different policies.

She stated that there were sone discussions regarding
prevention. An education specialist was hired to work with
the students, and she wondered how the collaboration wth
the council was operating. Ms. Omnen replied that she had
stepped into her position three years prior to address
health and safety issues in the schools, particularly
donestic violence and sexual assault prevention. She stated
that she represented Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (DEED) on the Council on Donestic Violence and
Sexual Assault. She shared that the focus had been on the
Four R Healthy Relationships Curriculum which  was
voluntary curriculum that had broad support in the state to
devel op healthy relationships anong students. She stated
that she was currently expecting the results from a three-
year formal evaluation of the inplenentation of the
curriculum She explained that the Four R Curriculum
addressed grades 7 through 9, and stated that there were
some efforts to add curriculum for the elenmentary grades.

She stressed that the curriculum did not address persona

safety education curriculum She stated that |[|egislation
woul d be the first type of health curricula in schools. The
educati on was encouraged, but not required.

9: 15: 37 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if the adoption of the [|aw
would be focused on K-12. M. Owen replied in the
affirmative.

Vice-Chair Fairclough stressed that there nust be support
for the child, once the child admts their situation. She
wondered how the children would be supported. M. Morton
responded that there was an intention to reach out to the
smal | er conmuni ties' avai |l abl e resour ces t hat wer e
identified as respectful and safe adults. The departnent
woul d work to incorporate the curricula in the comunities.

Vice-Chair Fairclough stressed that the school districts

would not be imrediately effective upon adoption of the
curriculum She wondered if there would be a schedule for

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 04/ 11/14 9:07 A M



i npl enentation, to ensure that the safety network was in
place. Ms. Morton replied in the affirmative. She stated
that there was sone prevention work that was already in
pl ace, and the |egislation would support and suppl enent the
exi sting prograns.

Vice-Chair Fairclough stressed that the children nust be
pr ot ect ed.

Senator Dunleavy wondered if the Departnment of Law had
weighed in on the legislation. Ms. Mrton deferred to the
sponsor.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if the training had evol ved since
an incident that took place at a preschool many vyears
prior. Ms. Owen replied that she was unfamliar wth the
case.

Co-Chair Meyer asked what case Senator Dunleavy was
referencing. Senator Dunleavy responded that the MMartin
Preschool case in California, which had unexpected results.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if the Departnent of Law had
expressed an opinion on the bill. M. Saltzman replied that
the Departnent of Law had not weighed in on the
| egi sl ation.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough MOVED to REPORT CSSB 216(FIN) out of
comittee Wi th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so order ed.

CSSB 216(FIN) was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass"” recomendation and with previously published fiscal
i npact note: FN1 (EED).

9:23:16 AM
AT EASE

9:25:27 AM
RECONVENED

#hb268
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 268(FIN)

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 04/ 11/14 9:07 A M



"An Act relating to big bull npose derbies and the
Snow Town Ice Cassic; and relating to permts for
ganes of chance and contests of skill."

9:25: 57 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough remarked that there were nany hali but
derbies. She felt that elimnated the |argest ganme, may
affect the gene pool. She wondered if there was a concern
about restricting the opportunity for obtaining |arge gane.
She asked if there was a different form of conducting the
der bi es.

REPRESENTATI VE TAMM E W LSON, expl ained that there had been
di scussion regarding Vice-Chair Fairclough's concerns. She
stated that there were sone areas that already designated
the mninum size aninmals. She felt that there could be an
option to bring the size to the closest possible mninmm
She felt that it would not have a negative effect on the
conpetition, and wuld increase participation in the
der bi es.

Vice-Chair Fairclough restated her concern about the
avai lability for breeding |arge aninmals.

Co- Chair Meyer understood that concern

CEORGE Pl ERCE, SELF, KASI LOF (via t el econference),
testified against the legislation. He felt that the npose
bel onged to the residents of Al aska, and should not be used
to benefit non-profit organizations that were directed
toward non-residents of Alaska. He pointed out that the
King Salnon derby directed funds to non-residents. He felt
that the non-residents of Alaska did not use the neat of
t he bull nopose.

RONENA PALOVAR, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ADVOCATES FOR VI CTI Ms
OF VI OLENCE, VALDEZ (via teleconference), spoke in support
of the legislation. She stated that the Advocates for
Victimse of Violence was eligible to receive funds from the
Snow Ice Cassics, that would help reopen their office in
G ennallen, and continue its operation to better serve the
victims of donestic violence and sexual assault.

9:32: 54 AM

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 04/ 11/14 9:07 A M



Vi ce-Chair Fairclough asked for information regarding the
i ssues of non-residents. Representative WIson stated that
there was a msunderstanding. She stressed that non-
residents did not have different requirenents than
residents. The noose would still need to go to the check
stations, and the neat would go with the person that shot
the noose, not to the non-profit. The non-profit was based
on the nmeasurenent of the size of the antlers.

Co-Chair Meyer wondered if M. Vincent-Lang had heard the
concerns about targeting | arge gane.

DOUG VI NCENT- LANG, DI RECTOR OF W LDLI FE, DEPARTMENT OF FI SH
AND GAME, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), understood that
the legislation allowed non-profits to have a derby to
raise funds within |egal seasons and nethods of neans. He
announced that there was some concern regarding taking
large aninmals out of the population, and the affect that
could have over tine. He stressed that Department of Fish
and Gane (DFG closely nonitored the effects of targeting
| ar ge gane.

Co- Chair Meyer RE- OPENED public testinony.

9:38: 06 AM

GRANT L. LEW S, PRESI DENT, TANANA VALLEY SPORTSMAN S
ASSCCI ATI ON, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), testified in
support of the legislation. He stated that the Tanana
Vall ey Sportsman Association was one of the ol dest
sportsman's groups in the state. He stated that the focus
of the association was on firearns safety education. The
nmoney from the derby would help to increase those education
progr ans.

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

Co-Chair Meyer noted the zero fiscal note.

Senator O son | ooked at the |last page of the bill. He asked
about the organization referenced on Dionmede |Island.

Representative WIlson asked for him to restate his
guesti on.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 04/ 11/ 14 9:07 A M



Senator O son |ooked at line 7, page 4, and wondered what
kind of event was on Dionmede I|sland. Representative WIson
wondered if Senator O son neant the Snow Town |Ice C assic.

Senator O son asked for information about the Cty of
D onmede. Representative WIlson replied that the reference
to the Gty of Dionede was already in statute, and the only
new addition was the Snow Town |ce C assic.

CSHB 268(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

#sb209
SENATE BILL NO. 209

"An Act prohibiting snoking in certain |ocations; and
providing for an effective date."

9:42: 20 AM

SENATOR PETER M CCICHE, explained the Ilegislation. He
stated that SB 209 was designed to provide a snoke-free
wor k environnent for nost enployees in Al aska. Second hand
snoke kills nore people in the United States than
autonobil e accidents. He stressed that, even though many
muni ci palities had ordi nances agai nst second hand snoke, a
| arge nunber of Alaskans may still be subject to second
hand snoke in the workplace. He remarked that the
| egislation did not subtract fromthe rights of the snoker,
it sinply protected the right of the nonsnokers from the
choices of others. He stressed that there were staggering
statistics about the exposure to second hand snoke. He
stressed that second hand snoke killed five tines nore
people in the U S. each year than drunk driving and all
conbi ned highway fatalities. He pointed out that he had to
figure out for hinself if the legislation was the proper
form of government, and he felt that the regulations were a
safety concern. He added that he was a fiscal conservative,
so the legislation would help to alleviate nedical costs
for people with conditions resulting from second hand
snoke.

Senat or Dunl eavy | ooked at page 3, line 5 of the bill, and
wondered if commercial fishing vessels were exenpt. Senator
M cciche replied in the affirmative. He stated that they
were exenpt, because the high seas in the outdoors may be
nor e dangerous than the second hand snoke.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 04/ 11/ 14 9:07 A M



Senator Dunleavy stressed that those individuals nay be
subject to second hand snoke. Senator M cciche agreed, but
felt that there was a consideration of what had the
greatest health risk

9:47:46 AM

Co-Chair Meyer queried the other exenptions that were
included in the bill. He felt that the fishing vessel
exenption was troubling. He surm sed that the exenption was
a safety issue. Senator Mcciche replied that the primary
concern was safety on the fishing vessel. He stressed that
the larger boats, like the ferries, made it easier for
peopl e to snoke out si de.

Co-Chair Meyer he felt that the cold weather in Fairbanks
may also be a health and safety issue. He wondered if the
local option was nmade through the commttee process.
Senator M cciche responded in the affirmative.

Senator Dunleavy surmsed that the unorganized boroughs
woul d be governed by the state. Senator M cciche agreed.

Senator O son wondered if the enployer could snoke in the
wor kpl ace. Senator M cciche replied that the enployer could
not snoke in the workplace only if the enployer had
enpl oyees.

Senator O son asked if a snoke shop owner would be exenpt.
Senator Mcciche replied in the affirmative.

Senator O son commented that he was not condoni ng snoking;
he was nerely inquiring the exenptions.

Co-Chair Meyer stressed that he was concerned about the
health of the enpl oyees of the snoke shop.

SB 209 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNIVENT
9:51:44 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 9:51 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 04/ 11/14 9:07 A M



